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Pasari Spinning Mills Limited

Date: 18'h October, 2024
To,
Mr. Jeevan Noronha,
Manager,
Department of Corporate Services,
Bombay Stock Exchange, Floor 25, PI Towers,Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 00]

Dear Sir,

Subject: Annual Report and notice convening 33rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of theCompany.
Ref: BSE code: 521080 — Pasari Spinning Mills Limited

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations andDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations”), please find enclosed theAnnual Report of the Company and Notice convening the 33rd AGM for the financial year 2023-24.

The 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company is scheduled to be held onWednesday, 13th November, 2024 at 11.00 AM through Video Conference / Other AudioVisual Means. ‘

The Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 is also beingmade available on the website of the Company at: httpszl [ www. asaris innin .com ininvestor relation section.

This is for your information and records please.

Thanking you
for Pas ri Spinning Mills Limited

Krishna Kumar Gupta
Managing Director
DIN: 00003880
Address: A-21 Silver palm, Bldg 3,
Basavanagar Main, Vibhuthipura Extn,
Marathalli, Bangalore-560067

No 18 Ill Floor, Anjaneya Temple Road. Yediyur. Jayanagar 61h Block. Bangalore ~ 560082
CIN: L851 10KA1991PLC012537 Phone No: 91-80-2676-0125Web: http://www.pasariexports.com/ Email: admin@pasariexpons.com
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NOTICE 

 

Notice is hereby given that the THIRTY THIRD Annual 

General Meeting of the Members of Pasari Spinning Mills 

Limited will be held on Wednesday, 13th November, 2024 

at 11.00 A.M through Video Conference/Other Audio 

Visual Means to transact the following business:- 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as 

at 31st March, 2024, the Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow 

Statement together with the Board’s Report and Auditors 

Report thereon as circulated to the shareholders;  

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Gauri Shankar Gupta 
(DIN: 00003860), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers herself for re-appointment. 
 

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, 
as an ordinary resolution: 
 
Reappointment of M/s. Rao & Emmar, Chartered 
Accountants, Bangalore, as statutory auditors of the 
Company 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 141, 142 and 

all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment thereof) and pursuant to the recommendations of 

the audit committee and the Board of Directors of the 

Company M/s. Rao & Emmar, Chartered Accountants, 

Bangalore (Firm Registration No. 03084S), be and are 

hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 

Company for the second term of five consecutive years, who 

shall hold office from the conclusion of this 33rd AGM till the 

conclusion of the 38th AGM to be held in the year 2029, 

at such remuneration as may be determined by the Board 

of Directors of the Company (including its committees 

thereof).” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 

the Company, (including its committees thereof), be and 

are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters 

and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or 

expedient, including filing the requisite forms or 

submission of documents with any authority or accepting 

any modifications to the clauses as required by such 

authorities, for the purpose of giving effect to this 

resolution and for matters connected therewith, or 

incidental thereto.” 

 
4.  

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

for PASARI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

 
 

Date: 16th October, 2024 Krishna Kumar Gupta 

Place: Bangalore     Managing Director 

     DIN: 00003880 

               Add: A-21 Silver palm,  

           Bldg 3, Basavanagar Main, 

         Vibhuthipura Extn, Marathalli, 

                 Bangalore- 560067 

 

Notes 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its 

General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 

17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, in relation to 

“Clarification on passing of ordinary and special 

resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 

2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the 

threat posed by “COVID-19”, General Circular Nos. 

20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 10/2022 dated December 



 

  

 

PASARI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

2 

28, 2022, 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and 

subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest 

being 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 in relation 

to “Clarification on holding of Annual General Meeting 

(“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other 

Audio Visual Means (OAVM)”, (collectively referred to 

as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the AGM 

through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of 

the Members at a common venue. In compliance with 

the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being 

held through VC /OAVM. The registered office of the 

Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the 

AGM. 

2. Further, towards this, the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India ('SEBI'), vide its Circular(s) dated May 

12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 

2023, October 6, 2023, October 7, 2023 and October 

03, 2024 ('SEBI Circulars') and other applicable 

circulars issued in this regard from time to time, has 

provided relaxations from compliance with certain 

provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

3. Participation of members through VC will be reckoned 

for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per section 

103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

 

4. In accordance with, the said circulars of MCA, SEBI 

and applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), the 33rd 

AGM of the Company shall be conducted through VC 

/ OAVM. National Securities Depositories Limited 

(‘NSDL’) will be providing facility for voting through 

remote e-voting, for participation in the AGM through 

VC / OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. The 

procedure for participating in the meeting through VC 

/ OAVM is explained at Note No. 19 below and is also 

available on the website of the Company at 

www.pasarispinning.com.  

5. As the AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM, 

the facility for appointment of Proxy by the Members is 

not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form 

and Attendance Slip including Route Map are not 

annexed to this Notice. However, the Body Corporates 

are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to 

attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate 

thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 

6. Members are requested to inform the Company's 

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents viz., Kfin 

technologies Private Limited, regarding changes, if 

any in their registered addresses along with the PIN 

code number. 

 

7. Members desirous of getting any information about the 

accounts of the Company are requested to send their 

queries to the Registered Office of the Company at 

least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting so that the 

requisite information can be readily made available. 

 

8. The Register of members and the share transfer books 

of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, the 

05th Novermber, 2024 to Wednesday, the 13th 

November, 2024 (both days inclusive). 

 

9. As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the 

facility for making nominations is available to the 

shareholders. Nomination forms can be obtained from 

the Company's Registrars and share Transfer Agents, 

viz., Kfin technologies Private Limited in physical form. 

10. Brief profile and other required information about the 

director liable to retire by rotation, as required under 

Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is as under- 

http://www.pasariexports.com/
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Name    Gauri Shankar Gupta  

Date of Birth 08-11-1942 

Date of 

appointment 

30-09-2019 

Qualifications Graduation 

Expertise in 

specific functional 

area 

Textile Industry 

Relationship with 

other directors 

Mr. G S Gupta is related to the 

KMPs and Non-executive 

Directors of the Company. 

Name of listed 

entities (other than 

the Company) in 

which he holds the 

Directorship and 

the membership of 

Committees of the 

Board 

Directorships in  

Listed 

Companies: 

None 

Membership of 

Committees in 

Listed 

Companies 

None 

No of shares held 

in Company 

100 Individually 

 

ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT 

AND PROCESS FOR REGISTRATION OF EMAIL ID 

FOR OBTAINING COPY OF ANNUAL REPORT: 

11. In accordance with, the Pursuant to the Circular No. 

14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 

dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 

dated May 05, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated 

January 13, 2021, Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 

2022, Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 

2023 and Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 

2024 and all other relevant circulars issued from time 

to time issued by SEBI owing to the difficulties 

involved in dispatching of physical copies of the 

financial statements (including Report of Board of 

Directors, Auditor’s report or other documents 

required to be attached therewith), such statements 

including the Notice of AGM are being sent in 

electronic mode to Members whose e-mail address is 

registered with the Company or the Depository 

Participant(s). 

In support of the Green Initiative, the Company 

hereby request members who have not updated their 

Email IDs to update the same with their respective 

Depository Participant(s) or Kfin technologies Private 

Limited for receiving communications from the 

Company electronically. 

Members holding shares in physical mode and who 

have not updated their email addresses with the 

Company are requested to update their email 

addresses by writing to the RTA at 

einward.ris@kfintech.com along with the copy of the 

signed request letter mentioning the name and 

address of the Member, self-attested copy of the PAN 

card, and self-attested copy of any document (eg.: 

Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport) in 

support of the address of the Member. Members 

holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested 

to register / update their email addresses with the 

relevant Depository Participants. In case of any 

queries / difficulties in registering the e-mail address, 

Members may write to einward.ris@kfintech.com. 

The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the 

financial year 2023-24, is available on the website of 

the Company at www.pasarispinning.com, on the 

website of Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com 

respectively and the AGM Notice is also available on 

the website of NSDL (agency for providing the 

Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com  

12. Members are requested to address all correspondences 

including those for Remat/Demat, nomination requests, 

share transfers, change of address/mandates for physical 

holdings etc., at least 10 days before Annual General 

Meeting to enable the management to keep the 
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information ready at the meeting. The queries may be 

addressed to: 

The Share Transfer agents — 

Kfin technologies Private Limited,  

Tower B, Plot No. 31 32, Selenium Building,  

Financial district, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,  

Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, 500032. 

Email: rajeev.kr@kfintech.com 
 

PROCEDURE FOR JOINING THE AGM THROUGH 

VC / OAVM: 

13. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the 

AGM through VC / OAVM through the NSDL e-voting 

system. Members may access the same at 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under Members login by 

using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC 

/ OAVM will be available in Members login where the 

EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that 

the Members who do not have the User ID and 

Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID 

and Password may retrieve the same by following the 

remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the notice. 

Further Members can also use the OTP based login 

for logging into the e-voting system of NSDL. 

 

14. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 

30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following 

the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 

participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will 

be made available for 1000 members on first come 

first served basis. This will not include large 

Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 

shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 

allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on 

account of first come first served basis. 

15. Members who need assistance before or during the 

AGM with use of technology, can: -   

1. Send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or use Toll 

free no.: 1800-222-990; 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 

2499 7000 

or - Contact Mr. Falguni C, Assistant Manager, 

NSDL at the designated email ID: 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or FalguniC@nsdl.com or at 

telephone number +91- 9933685588 

16. Please note that participants connecting from Mobile 

devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Video loss due 

to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 

recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection 

to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. Further 

Members will be required to allow Camera and use 

Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting. 

17. Members who would like to express their views or ask 

questions during the AGM may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request from their registered 

email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client 

ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at 

admin@pasariexports.com. Questions / queries received 

by the Company till 5.00 p.m. on Saturday 09th 

November, 2024 shall only be considered and responded 

during the AGM. Those Members who have registered 

themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 

their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company 

reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers 

depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 
 

18. Shareholders who would like to express their 

views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name, demat account 

number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

admin@pasariexports.com. The same will be replied 

by the company suitably. 

 

 PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND  

E-VOTING DURING THE AGM: 

19. (I) Pursuant to the provision of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 

mailto:rajeev.kr@kfintech.com
mailto:FalguniC@nsdl.com


  

 5 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 

(Management Administration) Rules, 2014 and in 

Compliance with Regulation 44(1) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015(as amended), and the Circulars 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 

08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 and all 

other relevant circulars issued from time to time issued 

by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI, the 

Company is pleased to provide members facility to 

exercise their votes at the 33rd Annual General 

Meeting by electronic means through E-voting service 

provided by company through NSDL e-voting system 

(For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 

agreement with National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic 

means, as the authorized agency) at 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com and the Business may 

be transacted through E-voting as per instruction 

below: 

a) Date and time of Commencement of voting 

through electronic means: 08th November, 

2024 at 09.00 A.M. 

b) Date and time of the end of voting through 

electronic means beyond which voting will not 

be allowed: 12th November, 2024 at 5.00 

P.M..  

c) Details of website: www.evoting.nsdl.com  

d) For any further clarification relating to E-voting 

contact our toll free No. 1800-222-990 or 

email us at evoting@nsdl.co.in.  

e) Details of Scrutinizer: Mr. Vinay B L, 

Practicing Company Secretary, Bangalore. 

f) The Members, whose names appear in the 

Register of Members / list of Beneficial 

Owners as on 06th November, 2024, i.e. being 

the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the 

Resolutions set forth in this Notice. A person 

who is not a Member as on the cut-off date 

should treat this Notice of AGM for information 

purpose only 

g) The Instructions for E-voting are as under: 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL  

e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” 

which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining 

virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode :  

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 

on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained With Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 

to update their mobile number and email Id in their 

Voting facility.  

Login method for Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode is given 

below: 

 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the 

e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on 

a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 

“IDeAS” section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 

to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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available against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL 

and you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS” Portal or click at  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL 

and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 

through their user id and password. Option will be made 

available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able 

to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 

is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra

tion 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate 

the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL 

where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 

e-Voting facility.  Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 

Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 

you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available against 

company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in 

or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 

1800 22 55 33  

B) Login Method for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 

mode 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-voting website? 

 

a. Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web 

browser by typing the URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b. Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, 

click on the icon ‘Login’ which is available under 

‘Shareholders’ section. 

c.  A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen.  

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL 

eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS 

login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 

your log-in credentials, click on e-voting and you can 

proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 

d. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares Your User ID is: 

a. For Members who hold 

shares in demat account with 

NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID 

followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID  

For example: if your 

DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 

12****** then your 

User ID is 

IN300***12****** 

b. For Members who hold 

shares in demat account 

with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary 

ID  

For example: if your 

Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then 

your User ID is 

12************** 

c. For Members holding   

       shares in Physical Form. 

EVEN Number 

followed by Folio 

Number registered 

with the Company 

For example: if folio 

number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 

101456 then your 

User ID is 

101456001*** 

 

a) After entering these details appropriately, click on 

"LOGIN". 

b) Your password details are given below: 

i. If you are already registered for e-voting, then you can 

use your existing password to login and cast your vote. 

ii. If you are using NSDL e-voting system for the first 

time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 

which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve 

your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 

password’ and the system will force you to change 

your password. 

iii. How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

 

If your email ID is registered in your demat account or 

with the Company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email 

sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 

email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the 

.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit 

client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for 

CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 

physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 

your ‘initial password’. 

If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps 

mentioned below in process for those shareholders 

whose email ids are not registered 

c) If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the 

‘Initial password’ or have forgotten your password: 

(i) Click on ‘Forgot User Details/Password?’ (If you 

are holding shares in your demat account with 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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NSDL or CDSL) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com.   

(ii) Physical User Reset Password? (If you are 

holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

(iii) If you are still unable to get the password by 

aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat 

account number/folio number, your PAN, your 

name and your registered address. 

(iv) Members can also use the OTP (One Time 

Password) based login for casting the votes on 

the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

(v) It is strongly recommended not to share your 

password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password 

confidential. 

(vi) You need to login again with the new 

credentials. 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on 

NSDL e-voting system. 

(vii) After entering your password, tick on Agree to 

“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. Now, you will have to click on 

“Login” button 

(viii) After successful login at Step 1, you will be 

able to see the Home page of e-voting. Click 

on e-voting. Then, click on Active Voting 

Cycles. 

(ix) After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be 

able to see all the companies ‘EVEN’ in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle 

is in active status. 

(x) Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish 

to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period and casting your vote during the 

General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, 

you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed 

under “Join General Meeting”. 

(xi) Now you are ready for e-voting as the voting 

page open 

(xii) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate 

options i.e. assent or dissent, verify / modify 

the number of shares for which you wish to 

cast your vote and click on ‘Submit’ and also 

‘Confirm’ when prompted. 

(xiii) Upon confirmation, the message ‘Vote cast 

successfully’ will be displayed. 

(xiv) You can also take the printout of the votes cast 

by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page.  

(xv) Once you 'CONFIRM' your vote on the 

resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 

your vote. 

(xvi) Corporate / Institutional Members (Corporate / 

F Is / Fl Is / Trust/Mutual Funds/Banks, etc) 

are required to send scan (PDF format) of the 

relevant Board resolution to the Scrutinizer 

through e-mail to vinay@vinaybl.com with 

copy to evoting@nsdl.co.in and admin@ 

pasariexports.com. The file scanned image of 

the Board Resolution should be in the naming 

format "Corporate Name. Event no.  

(xvii) The E-voting module shall be disabled for voting 

on 12th November, 2024 at 5.00 PM. Once the 

vote on a resolution is cast by the Shareholder, 

the Shareholder shall not be allowed to change 

subsequently. The voting rights of the 

Shareholders shall be in proportion of their 

shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the 

Company as on the book closure date. 

(xviii) In case of any queries, you may refer the 

'Frequently Asked Questions' (FAQs) for 

members and E-voting user manual for 

members available at the downloads section of 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free 

no.: 1800 1020 990, 1800 22 44 30 and : 022 - 

4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

(xix) Mr. Vinay B L, Practicing Company Secretary 

has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to 

scrutinize the E-voting process in a fair and 

transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall within 

a period not exceeding three (3) days from the 

conclusion of the E-voting period unblock the 

votes in the presence of at least two (2) witness 

not in the employment of the Company and 

make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in 

favor or against, if any, forthwith to the 

Chairman. The results shall be declared after 

the Annual General Meeting.  

(xx) The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's 

Report shall be placed on the Company's 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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website (www.pasarispinning.com) and on the 

website of the NSDL 

(https://www.evoting.nsdl.com) within two days 

of the Annual General Meeting of the Company 

and communicated to the BSE.  

(II)  Facility for members not having access to electronic 

voting 
 

a) To enable those members who may not have access 

to electronic voting facility to exercise their vote, a 

physical ballot form is being sent along with the 

Notice of Annual General Meeting.  

b) The Scrutinizer will collate the votes downloaded 

from the e-voting system and votes received through 

Physical Ballot to declare the results of the 

resolutions forming part of Notice of the Annual 

General Meeting.  

c) A member can opt for only one mode of voting, i.e 

either by physical ballot or by electronic voting. In 

case member casting votes in both modes, the votes 

made through electronic voting shall prevail.  
 

PROCEDURE FOR INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS: 

 

20. All the documents referred to in the accompanying 

Notice and Explanatory Statements, shall be available 

for inspection through electronic mode, basis the 

request being sent on pasari.limited@gmail.com. 

 

 
 

 

 

 
Your Board recommends the said resolution, as Ordinary 
resolution, for your approval. 

                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

By the Order of the Board  
PASARI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

 
 

 
Date: 16th October, 2024 Krishna Kumar Gupta 
Place: Bangalore Managing Director 
   DIN: 00003880 

         Add: A-21 Silver palm, Bldg 3, 
       Basavanagar Main, Vibhuthipura   

Extn, Marathalli, Bangalore- 560067 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:pasari.limited@gmail.com
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BOARD’S REPORT 

CIN: L85110KA1991PLC012537 

To  

The Members, 

The Directors present the Thirty Second Annual Report of Pasari Spinning Mills Limited (the Company) on the business and 

operations of the Company along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

Amount in Rs. 

Particulars     2023-24     2022-23 

Total Revenue    68,87,666.20    68,97,604.99 

Profit before tax    40,88,342.15    (29,10,632.87) 

Tax Expenses:   

Current tax - - 

Tax Related to earlier years - - 

MAT Credit entitlement  - - 

Deferred tax Charge/(Credit) (1,65,078.17) (1,61,855.90) 

Profit (Loss) for the year 42,53,420.32 (27,48,776.97) 

 

2. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

For the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Company 

has earned a profit of Rs. 42,53,420/- (Rupees Fourty 

two lakh fifty three thousand four hundred and twenty 

only) as compared with the previous year's loss of 

Rs. (27,48,776)/- (Rupees Twenty seven lakh fourty 

eight thousand seven hundred and seventy six only). 

3. THE WEB ADDRESS, IF ANY, WHERE ANNUAL 

RETURN HAS BEEN PLACED 

 

The Company is having website i.e. 

www.pasarispinning.com and Annual Return of Company 

has been published on this website.  

4. BIFR STATUS:  

The Company has continued in its efforts to obtain 

the necessary reliefs/concessions from Government 

of Karnataka on matters relating to Sales Tax. 

 

5. DIVIDEND: 

During the year under review, the Company did not 

declare any dividend to its members as a prudent 

business policy.  

 

6. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO 

INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND: 

During the period under review there were no 

amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 

 

7. RESERVES: 

During the year under review the Company has 

earned a profit of Rs. 42,53,420/- (Rupees Fourty two 

lakh fifty three thousand four hundred and twenty 

only)  as compared with the previous year's loss of 

Rs. (27,48,776)/- (Rupees Twenty seven lakh fourty 

eight thousand seven hundred and seventy six only) 



 

  

 

PASARI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

12 

and the same has been transferred to Reserves and 

Surplus account. 

 

8. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE 

OUTLOOK: 

The Company has discontinued its production 

operations from the financial year 2010-11. The 

Company has no intention to continue the production 

operations henceforth and has decided to lease out 

the Factory premises. The Company has not made 

any sales during the current year.  Future outlook 

detailed discussion is made under the head 

“Management Discussion and Analysis Report”, 

which forms part of Annual report 

9. CREDIT RATING:  NOT APPLICABLE 

10. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 

The Company has not changed its business 

objectives and nature of business during the year 

under review. However, the Board of Directors of the 

Company has added a new object clause in the 

existing Memorandum of Association which is 

relating to entering into the food industry. 

 

11. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY 

AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF 

THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE 

DATE OF THE REPORT: 

No material changes and commitments affecting the 

financial position of the Company occurred between 

the end of the financial year to which this financial 

statements relate and the date of this report. 

 

12. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL 

ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE 

GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE: 

There were no significant and material orders passed 

by the Regulators or the Courts or Tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and Company’s 

operation in the future.  

However, The Hon'ble Bangalore District Court, vide 

its order dated 31st January, 2020 has dismissed the 

case M/s Pasari Spinning Mills Limited Vs The 

Cotton Corporation of India. An appeal for the same 

is filed before the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka.  

 

13. STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH 

REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures 

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

Business, including adherence to the Company’s 

policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and timely 

preparation of the reliable financial disclosures. 

 

14. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND 

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint 

venture and Associate Companies. 

 

15. DEPOSITS: 

During the year under review the Company has not 

accepted/renewed any deposits. 

 

16. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:  

As required by Rule 5(2) and (3) of The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules 2014, there were no employees 

employed during the year who were in receipt of 

remuneration which is not less than Rs.8,50,000/- 

(Eight lakhs fifty thousand only) per month or Rs. 

1,02,00,000/- (One crore two lakhs only) per annum. 

 

17. AUDITORS: 

Statutory Auditors: 

M/s. Rao & Emmar, Chartered Accountants, 

Bangalore (Firm Registration No. 03084S), 

Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory 

Auditors of your Company at the Annual General 

Meeting held on 30th September, 2019, for the five 

consecutive years and each such term would require 

approval of the shareholders. In line with the 
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requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Rao & 

Emmar, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (Firm 

Registration No. 03084S) were appointed as Statutory 

Auditor of the Company at the 28th AGM held on 30th 

September, 2019 to hold office from the conclusion of 

the said meeting till the conclusion of the 33rd AGM to 

be held in the year 2024. The term of office of M/s. Rao 

& Emmar, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore, as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company will conclude from 

the close of the forthcoming AGM of the Company. 

The Auditors have confirmed that they are not 

disqualified from being appointed as Auditors of the 

Company.   

Statutory Auditors’ comments on Company’s 

accounts for year ended 31st March, 2024 are self-

explanatory in nature and do not require any 

explanation as per provisions of Section 134(3)(f) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The qualifications, 

reservation, adverse remark & Disclaimers provided 

in audit report is replied here. 

1.We draw attention to Note No. 24 – Other Disclosures 

of the Notes to the Financial Statements wherein the 

Company has provided for an amount of Rs. 63.90 

Lakhs owing to non-progress of the legal dispute with 

the Cotton Corporation of India Limited. Further the 

balance litigated amount of Rs. 639.22 lakhs has been 

disclosed as Contingent Liability. 

2. Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

the Financial Statements of the Company must be 

signed by any two directors (one of whom shall be the 

Managing Director), the Chief Executive Officer, the 

Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of 

the Company, wherever they are appointed. 

Our replies are as under: 

Qualification/ observation/ disclaimer/ adverse 

remark 1- The case is pending before the Hon'ble 

High Court of Karnataka. Further as a measure 

towards Good Corporate Governance and disclosure 

the amount provided as advance to CCI has been 

treated as bad & doubtful advances and the 

Company has made provision towards the same and 

it is disclosed accordingly in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss. 

Qualification/ observation/ disclaimer/ adverse 

remark 2- The Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company is recovering from his ill-health and will be 

back shortly. However presently he is unable to sign 

any document due to his weak health conditions. 

 

Secretarial Auditor: 

The Board has appointed M/s Vinay & Ashwini, 

Company Secretaries, Bangalore as the Secretarial 

Auditor, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 as required 

under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rules made thereunder. The Secretarial Audit 

Report for the FY 2023-24 forms part of the Annual 

Report as Annexure-1 to the Board’s Report. 

 

18. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

The requirement of preparing extract of Annual 

Return (MGT-9) is done away with by virtue of an 

amendment to Section 92(3) as well as Rule 12 of 

Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014. 

 

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 

ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO: 

Significant measures are taken to reduce the energy 

consumption by using energy- efficient equipments. 

Conservation of energy is always on the “To Do” list 

at all levels of operations. Efforts are made in this 

direction on a continuous basis. The company has 

taken the following adequate measures to conserve 

the energy: 

• Localized lighting in place of community lighting. 

• Employees are habituated to switch off fans, 

lights during the lunch break and at close of 

office hours. 

• The Company has started using LED lights 

which saves the energy considerably. 
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE: 

 

  Current Previous

 Year       Year  

Earnings in Foreign Currency NIL NIL 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency NIL NIL 

 

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 

The Company does not meet the prescribed 

thresholds as provided under Section 135 for 

constituting CSR committee and hence the same is 

not applicable. 

 

21. DIRECTORS: 

A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

During the year under review there was change in the 

constitution of Board, the details of the same is as 

under. 
 

 

 

 

Further, Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 

2013 Mr. Gauri Shankar Gupta (DIN: 00003860), retires 

by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-

appointment in the upcoming Annual General Meeting. 

 

Key Managerial Personnel: 

During the year under review there were no 

appointment and re-appointment of KMP.  

B) Declaration by Independent Director(s) and 

reappointment, if any 

The Company has received necessary declarations 

of independence from the both the Independent 

Directors under section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 

2013, that they meet the criteria of independent 

director envisaged in section 149(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

PROGRAMME FOR FAMILIARISATION OF INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTORS: 
 

The details of programme for familiarization of 

Independent Directors of the Company, their roles, 

rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 

industry in which the Company operates, business 

model of the Company and related matters are put 

up on the website of the Company at its link 

www.pasarispinning.com 

 

C) Formal Annual Evaluation 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Board has carried out an annual 

performance evaluation of its own performance, the 

Directors individually, as well as the evaluation of the 

working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee. 

22. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED 

DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW: 

The Board of Directors duly met 5 (five) times, during 

the year under review. The intervening gap between 

any two meetings was within prescribed period as per 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. The details of the same areas 

under:  

Sl. No Date of Meeting 

No of 

directors 

on the 

Board 

No. of 

Director

s 

Present 

1.  25th May, 2023 6 6 

2.  
07th  August, 

2023 
6 6 

3.  
05th October, 

2024 
6 6 

4.  
10th November, 

2023 
6 6 

5.  
13th February, 

2024 
6 6 
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23. COST RECORD 

The provision of Cost audit as per section 148 doesn’t 

applicable on the Company. 

24. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries so there is no 

need to prepare consolidated financial statement for the 

F. Y. 2023-24. 

 

25. SEBI (LODR) COMPLIANCE 

The Company has complied all the regulations of the 

SEBI (LODR) regulation, 2015 which are applicable to 

the company. 

 

26. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD 

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

Secretarial Standards and that such systems are 

adequate and operating effectively. 

 

27. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES: 

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual 

Listing Fee for the year 2023-2024 BSE Limited with 

whom the Equity Shares of the Company have been 

listed. 

 

28. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance 

has been fundamental to the business of your Company 

since its inception. A separate report on Corporate 

Governance is provided (Annexure -2A). 

 

29. POLICIES OF THE COMPANY: 

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for 

directors and employees: 

The Company has formulated Vigil 

Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy and the same is 

implemented. 

 

Research and Development: 

Since the Company does not have any production 

activities, the policy for the same is not applicable. 

 

Insider Trading Code 

In compliance with the SEBI regulations on 

prevention of insider trading, the Company has 

instituted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for 

regulating, monitoring and reporting of trading by 

Insiders. The said Code laid down guidelines, which 

advised them on procedures to be followed and 

disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of 

the Company and cautioned them on on sequences 

of non compliances. 

 

Internal Control System and Their Adequacy: 

Detailed discussion is made under the head 

“Management Discussion and Analysis Report”, 

which forms part of Annual report. 

 

Anti- Sexual Harassment Policy: 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual 

harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy 

on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual 

harassment of women at workplace and to provide a 

platform for redressal of Complaints and grievances 

against sexual harassment. During the Financial 

Year 2023-24, Company has not received any 

complaint on sexual harassment. 

 

30. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 

INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

Loans, Guarantees or Investments covered under 

Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of 

the notes to the Financial Statements provided in the 

Annual Report. 

 

31. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 

ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
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The particulars of every contract or arrangements 

entered into by the Company with related parties 

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length 

transactions under third proviso thereto is disclosed 

in Form No. AOC -2 as per Annexure-3. 

 

32. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION: 

Since the Company is not carrying on any profitable 

activities, the Directors of the Company have 

voluntarily waived off their remuneration. Hence no 

managerial remuneration is paid for the year under 

review. 

 

33. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND 

IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

POLICY OF THE COMPANY: 

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, 

assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key 

business objectives. Major risks identified by the 

businesses and functions are systematically addressed 

through mitigating actions on continues basis.Detail 

discussion is made under the heading Management 

Discussion and Analysis. 

 

34.  DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 your directors confirm that: 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 

applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures; 

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies 

and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the company as at the end of the 

financial year and of the profit/loss of the company 

for that period; 

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care 

for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this  

(d) Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities; 

(e) The directors had prepared the annual accounts 

on a going concern basis; and 

(f) That proper internal financial controls were in place 

and that the internal financial controls were 

adequate and were operating effectively.  

(g) The Directors had devised proper systems to 

ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were 

adequate and operating effectively. 

35. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON 

QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE 

REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE 

AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY 

SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS: 

The Board noted the reports given by Statutory Auditors 

and Secretarial Auditor and made the following 

Explanations: 

 

The replies to the Qualifications, Reservations or 

Adverse Remarks or Disclaimers of the Statutory 

Auditors are provided in the Point Number 17 
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Sr 

No. 

Qualification/ observation/ Adverse remarks/ 

Disclaimer 

Reply by the Board 

1 It is noticed that during the period under review BSE, Listing 

Compliance Department has made some observations with 

respect to maintenance of SDD and suggested the Company 

to comply with the applicable norms. 

The Company has promptly addressed 

and adhered to the observations raised 

by the Stock Exchange. 

2 Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 the 

Financial Statements of the Company must be signed by 

any two directors (one of whom shall be the Managing 

Director), the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial 

Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company, 

wherever they are appointed. 

The Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company is recovering from his ill-

health and will be back shortly. However 

presently he is unable to sign any 

document due to his weak health 

conditions. 

3 Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 

2015, the CEO and CFO must provide the compliance 

certificate to the Board of Directors. 

The Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company is recovering from his ill-

health and will be back shortly. However 

presently he is unable to sign any 

document due to his weak health 

conditions. 

36. FRAUD REPORTING: 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors have not 

reported any incident of fraud to the Board. 

 

37. VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OR BOARD’S REPORT: 

The Company has not made any application to the 

Authorities for revision of Financial Statements or 

Boards Report during the year under review.  

38. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY 

PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS 

AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 
 

(i) The Company has not made any application 

or initiated any proceedings under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 

(ii) There are no proceedings initiated/pending 

against your Company under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

which materially impact the business of the 

Company. 

39. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE 

AMOUNT OF VALUATION AT THE TIME OF ONE-

TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE 

AT THE TIME OF TAKING A LOAN FROM THE 

BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG 

WITH THE REASONS THEREOF: 

No settlements have been done with banks or financial 

institutions. 
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40. AMOUNTS DUE TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM 

ENTERPRISES 

Based on the information available with the company 

regarding the status of the suppliers under the MSME, 

there are no dues outstanding to Micro and Small 

Enterprises as at 31st March 2024. 

 

41. SHARES: 

SHARE CAPITAL: 

A. AUTHORISED CAPITAL 

The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 

14,00,00,000/-(Rupees fourteen crore only) divided 

into 1,40,00,000 (Once crore forty lakh only) equity 

shares of Rs. 10/- each.  

 

B. PAID UP CAPITAL: 

The Paid up capital of the Company is Rs. 

13,80,00,000/- (Rupees thirteen crore eighty lakh only) 

divided into 1,38,00,000 (Once crore thirty eight lakh 

only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

 

C. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL, IF ANY: 

There is no change in both the Authorised and paid up 

capital of the Company during the year under review. 

 

D. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES: 

The Company has not bought back any of its securities 

during the year under review. 

 

E. SWEAT EQUITY: 

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity 

Shares during the year under review. 

 

F. BONUS SHARES: 

No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under 

review. 

 

G. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN: 

During the year under review the Company has not 

provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees. 

 

H. ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL 

RIGHTS: 

No equity shares with differential rights were issued 

during the year under review.  

 

42.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

The Directors place on record their appreciation for 

cooperation and continued support extended by 

employees, consultants, customers, shareholders, 

investors, partners, vendors, bankers, the 

Government, and statutory authorities for the 

Company’s growth. We thank  

associates and consultants for their valuable 

contribution in our progress and look forward to their 

continued support. 

 

 

 

Date: 16th  
October, 
2024 

Poonam Gupta Krishna Kumar 
Gupta 

Place: 
Bangalore 

DIN: 08447607 DIN: 00003880 

 Director Managing 
Director 

 Address: A-21 
Silver Palm, TATA 

Sherwood, 
Basavanagar Main, 
Vibhuthipura Extn, 

Marathahalli 
Colony, Bangalore- 

560037 

Address: A-21 
Silver palm, Bldg 
3, Basavanagar 

Main, Vibhuthipura 
Extn, Marathalli, 

Bangalore- 560067 
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ANNEXURE - 1 

FORM NO. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report 

for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Pasari Spinning Mills Limited, 

No. 18, III Floor, Anjaneya Temple Road, 

Yediyur, Jayanagar 6th Block, 

Bangalore-560082 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Pasari Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’) 

CIN- L85110KA1991PLC012537. Secretarial Audit was conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (a statutory body constituted under the Company 

Secretaries Act, 1980) and in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and read with the Statutory Auditors Report on Financial Statements and 

their certificate on compliance with the conditions of relevant provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirement) and also the information provided by the Company its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion and to the best of 

our information, knowledge and belief and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has during 

the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the applicable statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-process and compliance mechanism 

in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereafter.  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 

Pasari Spinning Mills Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the applicable 

provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

2. The Securities Contract (Regulation)Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;  

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed thereunder; 
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4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings to the extent 

applicable to the Company; 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 to the extent applicable to the Company: - 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999/The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 

Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the audit period) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not  

applicable to the Company during the audit period) and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 and The 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018, (Not applicable 

to the Company during the audit period). 

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

Observations: 

1. It is noticed that during the period under review BSE, Listing Compliance Department has made 

some observations with respect to maintenance of SDD and suggested the Company to comply 

with the applicable norms. 

2. Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Financial Statements of the Company 

must be signed by any two directors (one of whom shall be the Managing Director), the Chief 

Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company, 

wherever they are appointed. 
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3. Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation, 2015, the CEO and CFO must provide the compliance certificate to the Board of 

Directors. 

We were informed that the Chief Financial Officer of the Company is unable to sign due to his 

weak health conditions. 

Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matters. 

 

We further report that: 

1) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors, as on 31st March, 2024. The changes in the composition of the 

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act. 

 

2) Adequate notice is given to all directors for the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system are in place for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

 

3) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as 

part of the minutes. 

 

4) We further report that the Company has to develop adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with 

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. The Company may have to pay penalties because of 

non-compliances as reported above, if levied by the respective authorities. 

 

5) Based on the information provided by the officials of the Company we report that during the period under 

review the company has not received any show cause notices and we further report there are no other 

Specific events, which requires reporting hereunder. 

 For Vinay &Ashwini 
Company Secretaries 

  
 

Date: 16th October, 2024 
Place: Bangalore  
UDIN : F009159F001586625 

 

Vinay BL 
M No. F9159, CP No. 10760 

PR No: 1964/2022  
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Annexure A 

The Members, 

Pasari Spinning Mills Limited, 

L85110KA1991PLC012537, 

No. 18 III Floor, Anjaneya Temple Road, 

Yediyur, Jayanagar 6th Block, 

Bangalore-560082 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 

that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, We followed 

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion expressed in the Report. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

company. 

4. Wherever required, We have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 For Vinay &Ashwini 
Company Secretaries 

  
 

Date: 16th October, 2024 
Place: Bangalore  

Vinay BL 
M No. F9159, CP No. 10760 

PR No: 1964/2022  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT– ANNEXURE –2A 

The Company complies with Corporate Governance as per SEBI (LODR) and a report containing the details of the 

Corporate Governance and processes is as under: 

 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of the highest levels of transparency, 

accountability and equity in all facets of its operations and in all its transactions with its stakeholders, including its 

employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers, partners, supporting agencies, Government, and society at large.  

 

The overall responsibility for guiding Corporate Governance within the Company rests with the Board of Directors (‘the 

Board’), which has put in place appropriate policies, guidelines and processes. The day -to-day implementation and 

monitoring of these policies, guidelines and processes rest with the Management of the Company and are in consonance 

with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, and applicable SEBI Regulations, 

including SEBI (LODR). Keeping in view the Company’s size, complexity, and corporate traditions, Company has 

adopted the following main principles and philosophies: 

I. Constitution of the Board of the Company and Committees of Directors of appropriate composition, size and 

expertise.  

II. Complete transparency in the operations of the Company 

III. Maintaining prescribed levels of disclosure and complete openness in communication.  

IV. Independent verification and safeguarding integrity of the Company’s financial reporting. 

V. A sound system of risk management and internal control. 

VI. Timely and balanced disclosure of all material information concerning the Company to its stakeholders 

 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Table 01: Composition of Board of Directors 

I. Composition of Board of Directors 

Title 
(Mr. 

/ 
Ms) 

Name of 
the 

Director 

PAN & 
DIN 

Category 
(Chairperson
/ Executive 

/Non-
Executive 

/independen
t/ Nominee) 

Date of 
Appoin
tment 
in the 

current 
term 

Tenure* 

No of 
Director
ship in 
listed 

entities 
includin

g this 

Number 
of 

members
hips in 
Audit/ 

Stakehol
der 

No of 
post of 

Chairpers
on in 

Audit/ 
Stakehold

er 
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Table 02: Directorship, Shareholding and Meetings of the Board of Directors: 

Name of 
the Director 

Date 
Of 

Birth 

Equity 
Sharehold
ing (as on 
March 31, 

2024) 

No. of 
Directorship 

No. of Board 
Meetings during 

FY 2023-24 

Whether 
attended  
last AGM 
held on 

27th 
September,

2023 

Specific Core 
Skills, 

Expertise and 
Competencies 

Publi
c 

Private Held 
Attende

d 

Mr. Krishna 
Kumar 
Gupta 

24-09-
1970 

          
150,700 
Shares  

2 - 5 5 Yes 
Finance, 
Corporate 
Governance, 

/cessat
ion 

listed 
entity 
(Refer 

Regulati
on 25(1) 

of 
Listing 

Regulati
ons) 

Committ
ee(s) 

including 
this listed 

entity 
(Refer 

Regulatio
n 26(1) of 

Listing 
Regulatio

ns) 

Committe
e held in 

listed 
entities 

including 
this listed 

entity 
(Refer 

Regulatio
n 26(1) of 

Listing 
Regulatio

ns) 

Mr. 
Krishna 
Kumar 
Gupta 

00003880, 
ADSPG346

5G 

Executive, 
Managing 
Director 

31-08-
2023 

5 years from 
the date of 

appointment 
1 - 

 

- 

Mrs. 
Poonam 
Gupta 

08447607 
AFTPK2222

C 

Non 
Executive  

Non 
Independent 

Director 

09-05-
2019 

- 1 1 1 

Mr. 

Kolagun
da 

Kumar 
Siddapp

a 

08305351, 
CFYPK6554

C 

Non-
Executive - 

Non 
Independent 
Director,Chai

rperson 

20-09-
2021 

- 1 -       - 

Mr. 
Gauri 

Shankar 
Gupta 

00003860, 
ADVPG309

1R 

Non-
Executive 
Director 

30-09-
2019 

- 1 - - 

Ms. 
Sheela 
Arvind 

01020390, 
ABKPA235

0G 

Additional - 
Non-

Executive 
Independent 

Director 

10-05-
2022 

5 years from 
the date of 

appointment  
1 1 1 

Mr. 

Badarah
alli 

Lakshm
aiah 

Pundare
eka 

01415867, 
BKWPP188

0Q 

Non-
Executive 

Independent 
Director 

30-06-
2021 

5 years from 
the date of 

appointment 
2 1 - 
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Management, 
Human 
Resource, 
Legal 

Mrs. 
Poonam 
Gupta 

18-11-
1976 

32,629 
Shares 

1 - 5 5 Yes 

Corporate 
Governance , 
Management, 
Human 
Resource 

Ms. Sheela 
Arvind 

15-04-
1969 

NIL 1 3 5 5 Yes 

Corporate 
Governance, 
Management , 
Corporate Law 

Mr. 
Kolagunda 
Kumar 
Siddappa 

22-05-
1967 

NIL 1 - 5 5 Yes 

Corporate 
Governance , 
Finance, Sales 
and Marketing 

Mr. Gauri 
Shankar 
Gupta 

08-11-
1942 

 

100 
Shares 

2 - 5 5 Yes 
Corporate 
Governance, 
Legal  

Mr. 
Badarahalli 
Lakshmaia
h 
Pundareeka 

10-04-
1964 

NIL 2 1 5 5 Yes 

Management, 
Corporate 
Governance,  
Finance, 
Corporate 
Governance, 
Management, 
Human 
Resource, 
Legal 

 

BOARD MEETINGS: 

The Board meets once in a quarter and additionally as and when required. The calendar of the Board meetings is 

decided in consultation with the Board, and the schedule of meetings is communicated to all Directors in advance to 

enable them to plan their effective participation during the Board meetings. The items in the Agenda are backed by 

comprehensive background information to enable the Board to take appropriate decisions. In addition to the information 

required under Schedule II Part A of SEBI (LODR), the Board is also kept informed of major events/ items and approvals 

taken wherever necessary. 

The Board met five times in FY 2023-24: 25th May, 2023, 07th August, 2023, 31st August, 2023, 10th November, 
2023, 13th February, 2024. 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

The Independent Directors of your Company meet on 07th August, 2023, without the presence of the  

Non-Independent Directors or any other Management Personnel. These Meetings are conducted to enable the 

Independent Directors to, inter-alia, discuss matters pertaining to:  

(a) Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors & Committees as a whole;  

(b) Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive and 

Non-Executive Directors.  
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(c) Evaluation of the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information between the Management and the Board that 

is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties effectively 

 

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: 

Since the Company is not carrying on any profitable activities, the Directors of the Company have voluntarily waived off 

their remuneration. Hence no managerial remuneration is paid for the year under review.  

 

CONFIRMATION AND CERTIFICATION 

On an annual basis, the Company obtains from each Director, details of the Board and Board Committee positions he / 

she occupies in other Companies, and changes if any regarding their Directorships. The Company has obtained a 

certificate from M/s Vinay & Ashwini, Company Secretaries,, under Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause 

(10) (i) of Listing Regulations confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred 

or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Company by the SEBI and Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

or any such authority and the same forms part of this Report.  

 

BOARD INDEPENDENCE 

Our definition of ‘Independence’ of Directors is derived from Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16 of Listing 

Regulations. The Independent Directors provide an annual confirmation that they meet the criteria of independence. 

Based on the confirmations/ disclosures received from the Directors and on evaluation of the relationships disclosed, 

supported by a certificate from M/s Vinay & Ashwini, Company Secretaries,, as per the requirement of Regulation 25(8) 

of the Listing Regulations, the Board confirms, that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions as specified under 

Schedule V of the Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.  

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME: 

The details of programme for familiarization of independent directors of the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities 

in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company and related 

matters are put up on the website of the Company at its link www.pasarispinning.com 

 
GOVERNANCE BY COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Company has the following Committees of the Board of Directors:  

(I) Audit Committee 

(II) Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

(III) Stakeholders Relationship Committee  

(IV) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee & Risk Management Committee- NA 

 

1. Audit committee:  

The Company’s Board has constituted an Audit Committee pursuant to the provisions of 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  

 

(a) Composition: 

1. Mrs. Sheela Arvind, Chairperson, Non- executive Independent Director  

2. Mrs. Poonam Gupta, Member, Non executive Director, 

3. Mr. Badarahalli Lakshmaiah Pundareeka, Member, Non- executive Independent Director,  

http://www.pasariexports.com/


  

 27 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 2024 

 (b) Powers: Powers of the Audit Committee include: 

(i) To investigate any activity within its responsibilities. 

(ii) To have independent back office support and other resources from the company. 

(iii) To have access to information contained in the records of the Company or from any employee. 

(iv) To obtain legal or professional advice from external sources. 

(v) To have the facility of separate discussions with both internal and external auditors as well as the 

management. 

(vi) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 

(c)  Roles and Responsibilities: 

(i) Recommend the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor and internal auditor, approve 

terms of engagement, including fixation of audit fee, and also approve the payment for any other services. 

The Committee shall review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the 

effectiveness of the audit process. 

(ii) Review the financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information of the Company, as well as 

subsidiaries, to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. Also, monitor the 

integrity of the financial statements of the Company. 

(iii) Review, with management, the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, 

focusing primarily on: 

1. Any changes in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

2. Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management. 

3. Qualifications in draft audit report. 

4. Significant adjustments arising out of audit. 

5. The going concern assumption. 

6. Compliance with accounting standards. 

7. Compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements. 

8. Management Discussion and Analysis of financial conditions and results of operations. 

9. Directors’ Responsibility Statement. 

 

(iv) Review the adequacy of internal control systems and review internal audit reports, management letters 

relating to internal control weaknesses, if any. 

(v) Review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of 

internal audit. 

(vi) Discussion, review and follow up on the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material 

nature, including management override of internal controls and financial irregularities involving management 

team members. 

(vii) Discussions with external auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of the audit, and 

have post-audit discussions to ascertain any areas of concern. 

(viii) Review the Company’s financial and risk management policies and systems. Assist executive management 

to identify the risk impacting the Company’s business and document the process of risk identification, risk 

minimization and risk optimization as a part of risk management policy. 

(ix) Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 

(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors, and monitor utilization of funds raised through 

public and preferential issues. 
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(x) Review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism established in the Company. 

(xi) Monitor and approve all Related Party Transactions including any modification/amendment with promoters 

or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc., that may have potential conflict with the interests of 

Company at large. 

(xii) Any other matter referred to the Audit committee by the Board of Directors of the Company 

(d)   Meetings: During the year Audit committee met 4 times 25th May, 2023, 07th August, 2023, 10th 
November, 2023, 13th February, 2024. 

 

 

Attendance record in Audit Committee is as follows: 

  

As required under Regulation 18 of (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations with the 

Stock Exchanges, all necessary information was placed before the Board from time to time.  

Other than transactions entered into in the normal course of business, the Company has not entered into any 

materially significant related party transactions during the year, which could have potential conflict of interest 

between the Company and its Promoters, Directors, Management and/or relatives.  

 

2.   Nomination and Remuneration committee:  

            

           (a)  Composition: 

1.  Mrs. Sheela Arvind, Chairperson, Non- executive Independent Director  

2.  Mrs. Poonam Gupta, Member, Non executive Director, 

3.  Mr. Badarahalli Lakshmaiah Pundareeka, Member, Non- executive Independent Director,  

 

(b)  Powers/Roles: The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee include the 

following: 

i. To decide on all matters relating to the Company’s stock option/share purchase schemes including 

the grant of options/shares to the Directors and employees of the Company and/or of its subsidiaries. 

ii. To determine and make suitable recommendations to the Board in all matters relating to qualification, 

appointment, evaluation and remuneration of the Independent Directors of the Board, Executive 

Directors of the Company and its managerial personnel under 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

iii. To review performance and determine the remuneration payable to Executive Directors. 

Sl. No Members Category 
No of 
meetings 
attended 

1.  
Mrs.  Sheela Arvind   

Chairperson & Independent 

Director  
4 

2.  
Mrs. Poonam Gupta 

Member, Non Executive 
Director 

4 

3.  
Mr. Badarahalli Lakshmaiah 

Pundareeka 

 

Member & Independent 

Director 
4 
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iv. Establishment and administration of employee compensation and benefit plans.  

v. To decide and make suitable recommendations to the Board on any other matter that the Board may 

entrust the Committee with or as may be required by any statutes /regulations /guidelines / listing 

agreements, etc. 

  

(c)  Meetings: During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once on 25th May, 2023. Composition, 

Category and attendance of the Remuneration Committee is as under: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.   Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

a)    Composition 

1. Mrs. Poonam Gupta, Chairperson, Non executive Director 

2.  Mrs. Sheela Arvind, Member, Non- executive Independent Director  

3. Mr. Badarahalli Lakshmaiah Pundareeka, Member, Non- executive Independent Director,  

  

b)   Powers/Roles: 

Powers/Roles: The Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of the security holders of 

the listed entity including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report and 

non-receipt of declared dividends. 

 

c)    Meetings: 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once during the year on 25th May, 2023. 

Attendance Record in Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings held during the year is as follows:  

 

Sl. No Members Category 
No of 
meetings 
attended 

1.  
Mrs.   Sheela Arvind   

Chairperson & Independent 

Director  
1 

2.  
Mrs. Poonam Gupta 

Member, Non Executive 
Director 

1 

3.  
Mr. Badarahalli Lakshmaiah 

Pundareeka 

 

Member & Independent 

Director 
1 

Sl. No Members Category 
No of 
meetings 
attended 

1 Mrs. Poonam Gupta 
Chairperson, Non Executive 
Director 

1 
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GOVERNANCE BY MANAGEMENT 

Related Party Transactions: 

During FY 2023-24, there were no materially significant Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company with 

the Directors or Management or their relatives that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 

large. The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in 

sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso 

thereto is disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 as per Annexure-3 

 

DISCLOSURE ON WEBSITE 

Following information has been disseminated on the website of the Company at /www.pasarispinning.com: 

1. Details of business of the Company;  

2. Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors; 

3. Composition of various Committees of Board of Directors; 

4. Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel; 

5. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower policy;  

6. Grievance Redressal; 

7. Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions;  

8. Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries;  

9. Details of Familiarisation Programmes imparted to Independent Directors;  

10.  Policy for Determination of Materiality of Events; 

11. Policy for Sexual Harassment  

12. Nomination & Remuneration Policy 

13. Code of Business Conduct and Ethic 
 

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S FEES: 

The total fees paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditor and all its entities in the network firms/entities of the 

Statutory Auditor, for all the services provided to the Company is Rs. 50,000/ - 
 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINTS: 

 

Particulars  No. of cases 

outstanding as on 

April 01, 2023 

No. of cases added 

during the year 

No. of cases 

resolved during the 

year 

No. of cases 

outstanding as on 

March 31, 2024 

No. of Complaints NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

Report of Investor Complaints received and disposed of during year ended March 31, 2024: 
 

Particulars  No. of cases 

outstanding as on 

No. of cases added 

during the year 

No. of cases 

resolved during the 

No. of cases 

outstanding as on 

2 
Mrs.  Sheela Arvind 

  

Member & Independent 

Director  
1 

5 

Mr. Badarahalli Lakshmaiah 

Pundareeka 

 

Member & Independent 

Director 
1 

https://www.pasariexports.com/
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April 01, 2023 year March 31, 2024 

No. of Investor 

issues 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

No. of legal cases NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

Details on General meetings: 

Location, date and time of the General Meetings held in the last 3 years are as under:  

A G M Date Time Venue 

32nd  27/09/2023 
11.00 AM Through Video Conference / 

Other Audio Visual Means 

31st  02/08/2022  
11.00 AM Through Video Conference / Other 

Audio Visual Means 

30th 20/09/2021 11.00 AM Through Video Conference / Other 

Audio Visual Means 

 

Details of Special Resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs  

A G M Particulars of Special Resolutions passed thereat  

32nd  None of the Special Resolutions passed 

31st 
Regularisation of appointment of Ms. Sheela Arvind as an independent non-executive director of 

the company. 

30th Alteration of the Object clause of the Memorandum of the Association of the Company.  

 

None of the businesses required to be transacted at the Thirty Third Annual General Meeting, is proposed to be 

passed by postal ballot. 

 

Disclosures: 

Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions i. e. transactions of the Company of material nature, with 

its promoters, or the Management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc., that may have potential conflict with the interest 

of Company at large. 

(Amount in Rs) 

Name of the party Nature of transaction Amount 

Pasari Exports Limited Borrowings 1,91,47,490 

 

No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority 

on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years. 

 

Means of communication: 

Quarterly/Annual Results: 

The Quarterly and Annual Results of the Company are sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately after they are approved 

by the Board in accordance with the Statutory requirement. These results are also made available on the website of the 

Company at www.pasarispinning.com. 
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During the year the Company has not made any presentations to analysts.  
 

General Shareholder information: 

➢ Annual General Meeting               13th November, 2024 
➢ Venue              through Video Conference / Other Audio 

Visual Means 

                                  . 
Financial year:       1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024. 
 
Date of book closure:                                                   Tuesday, the 05th Novermber, 2024 to Wednesday, the           
.                                                                                            

                      13th November, 2024 (both days inclusive) 
 
Listing: The shares of the Company are listed on the following 

stock exchange 
Bombay stock exchange 
P J Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai – 400 001 
The Annual listing fees of the stock Exchange for the  
financial year 2022-23 has been paid. 

STOCK CODE:                  521080 
ISIN: (Equity)      INE 604F01010 
 

Market price data: 

Month High 
Price 

Low 
Price 

Apr-23 7.53 5.80 

May-23 8.90 6.05 

Jun-23 9.00 7.01 

Jul-23 7.89 5.50 

Aug-23 8.10 6.16 

Sep-23 8.89 6.36 

Oct-23 7.70 6.01 

Nov-23 7.86 6.03 

Dec-23 7.94 6.16 

Jan-23 8.96 6.01 

Feb-23 7.90 6.06 

Mar-24 7.83 6.01 
 

Sensex  for the period: 

Month High Low 

Apr-23 61209.46 58793.08 

May-23 63036.12 61002.17 

Jun-23 64768.58 62359.14 

Jul-23 67619.17 64836.16 

Aug-23 66658.12 64723.63 

Sep-23 67927.23 64818.37 

Oct-23 66592.16 63092.98 

Nov-23 67069.89 63550.46 

Dec-23 72484.34 67149.07 

Jan-23 73427.59 70001.6 

Feb-23 73413.93 70809.84 

Mar-24 74245.17 71674.42 
 

 
 

Registrars and Share transfer Agents:   
Kfin technologies Private Limited,  
Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad 
Rangareddi-500032 

Tel: 040 67162222 
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Email Id: einward.ris@kfintech.com 
 
Share transfer system: 

All shares have been transferred and returned within 21 days from the date of lodgement, provided the 

necessary documents were in order. 

Distribution of shareholding as on 31.03.2024: 
 

 
 
 
sDematerialisation of shares & liquidity: 
As of the end of 31st March 2024 shares comprising approximately 92.70 % of shares of the company’s Equity share 
capital have been dematerialized. 
Shareholding pattern as at 31.03.2024 
 

Sl. No Category of Shareholder No of 
shareholder 

Total No of 
Shares 

Total shareholding 
as a percentage of 
total number of 
shares 

(A) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER AND 
PROMOTER GROUP 
Individuals/HUF 
Bodies Corporate 

 
3 
 

1 

 

3,01,500 

70.20,842 

 
2.18 

 
50.88 

(A) Total Promoter's Holding 4 73,22,342 53.06 

(B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING    

 I. INSTITUTIONS 
Foreign Portfolio Investors 
Financial Institutions/Banks 

 
1 
1 

 
10 

100 
 

 
0.00 
0.00 

slno Category (Amount) Phy Cases Phy Cases % Phy Shares Phy Amount Phy Amount % Ele Cases Ele Cases % Ele Shares Ele Amount Ele Amount % Total Cases Total Cases % Total Shares Total Amount Total Amount %

1  1-5000 4037 35.751 687029 6870290 4.9785 6027 53.3741 673600 6736000 4.8812 10064 89.125 1360629 13606290 9.8596

2  5001- 10000 124 1.0981 103800 1038000 0.7522 473 4.1888 409064 4090640 2.9642 597 5.2869 512864 5128640 3.7164

3  10001- 20000 39 0.3454 58700 587000 0.4254 235 2.0811 366855 3668550 2.6584 274 2.4265 425555 4255550 3.0837

4  20001- 30000 15 0.1328 41100 411000 0.2978 93 0.8236 236225 2362250 1.7118 108 0.9564 277325 2773250 2.0096

5  30001- 40000 3 0.0266 10900 109000 0.079 35 0.31 125525 1255250 0.9096 38 0.3365 136425 1364250 0.9886

6  40001- 50000 3 0.0266 15000 150000 0.1087 46 0.4074 219281 2192810 1.589 49 0.4339 234281 2342810 1.6977

7  50001- 100000 7 0.062 69300 693000 0.5022 68 0.6022 507590 5075900 3.6782 75 0.6642 576890 5768900 4.1804

8 100001& Above 1 0.0089 15800 158000 0.1145 86 0.7616 10260231 102602310 74.3495 87 0.7705 10276031 102760310 74.464

PASARI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Distribution Schedule as on 27 September 2024 (Consolidated)
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 II. NON INSTITUTIONS 
 
Directors and their relatives (excluding 
independent directors and nominee 
directors) 
 
Individuals:- 
Individuals Shareholders Holding Nominal 
shareholding up to Rs.2 lakhs 
 
Individuals holding nominal shareholding 
excess of Rs.2 lakhs 
 
Others 

 
 
 

143 
 
 
 

8639 
 

31 
 
 

252 

 
 
 

1,09,768 
 
 
 

33,12,361 
 

24,60,044 
 

5,95,375 

 
 
 

0.80 
 
 
 

24.00 
 

 
17.83 

 
 

4.32 
 

(B) Total Public Shareholding 9067 64,77,658 46.94 

 (A)+(B) 9071 13,80,0000 100 

 

Plant location:                                                                 Address of Registered Office of the Company : 

Company’s factory was located at:                             PASARI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

#54 & 55, KIADB Industrial Area,                                  #18, (old No 16), III Floor, Anjaneya Temple Road, 

 1st Main, 3rd Cross, Nanjangud – 571301                     Yediyur, 6th Block, Jayanagar, Bangalore – 560082 
 

 
The above report was approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 16th October, 2024. 
 
 
        for and on behalf of the board 
                  for Pasari Spinning Mills Limited 
 

 

 

  

Date: 16th October, 2024 

Place: Bangalore 

Krishna Kumar Gupta 

Managing Director 

DIN:  00003880 

Address:  A-21 Silver palm, Bldg 3, 

Basavanagar Main, Vibhuthipura Extn, 
Marathalli, Bangalore- 560067 
   

file:///E:/psml%20public%20inspection/MARCH%202023/Shareholding%20Pattern/Shareholding%20Pattern_MARCH%202023.xlsm%23'Directors%20and%20their%20relatives'!A1
file:///E:/psml%20public%20inspection/MARCH%202023/Shareholding%20Pattern/Shareholding%20Pattern_MARCH%202023.xlsm%23'Directors%20and%20their%20relatives'!A1
file:///E:/psml%20public%20inspection/MARCH%202023/Shareholding%20Pattern/Shareholding%20Pattern_MARCH%202023.xlsm%23'Directors%20and%20their%20relatives'!A1
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
 
The Members, 
Pasari Spinning Mills Limited, 
No. 18, III Floor, Anjaneya Temple Road, 
Yediyur, Jayanagar 6th Block, 
Bangalore-560082 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Pasari 
Spinning Mills Limited having CIN L85110KA1991PLC012537 and having registered office at No. 18, III Floor, Anjaneya 
Temple Road, Yediyur, Jayanagar 6th Block, Bangalore-560082  (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced 
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
other Statutory Authority. 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of 
appointment  

Date of 
Cessation 

1 Krishna Kumar Gupta 00003880 31-08-2023  NA 

2 Poonam Gupta 08447607 09-05-2019 NA 

3 Sheela Arvind 01020390 10-05-2022 NA 

4 Kolagunda Kumar Siddappa 08305351 20-09-2021 NA 

5 Gauri Shankar Gupta 00003860 30-09-2019 NA 

6 Badarahalli Lakshmaiah Pundareeka 01415867      30-06-2021  NA 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification.  
 
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
This Certificate has been issued at the request of the Company to make disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report 
of the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 For Vinay & Ashwini 
Company Secretaries 

 
Date: 16th October, 2024 

Place: Bangalore 
UDIN: F009159F001586746 

Vinay BL 
M No. F9159, CP No. 10760 

PR No: 1964/2022 

 

 

 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Chief Executive Officer (CEO) & Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification 

 
To, 
 
The Board of Directors, 
Pasari Spinning Mills Limited, 
 

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Pasari Spinning 
Mills Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:  

(a)  We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

(i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any 
statements that might be misleading; 

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance 
with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

(b)  We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.  

(c)  We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have confirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company. 

(d)  We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of 
the same over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the 
steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.  

(e)  We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit 
Committee 

(i)  significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;  

(ii)  significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

(iii)  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting. 

 

Date: 16th October, 2024  Krishna Kumar Gupta 
Place: Bangalore  DIN: 00003880 
  Managing Director 
  Address: A-21 Silver palm, Bldg 3, Basavanagar 

Main, Vibhuthipura Extn, Marathalli, Bangalore-
560067 
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Certificate of Compliance with the Corporate Governance 

Practicing Company Secretary Certificate on Compliance with the Corporate Governance Requirements under SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Pasari Spinning Mills Limited, 

No. 18, III Floor, Anjaneya Temple Road, 

Yediyur, Jayanagar 6th Block, 

Bangalore-560082 

We have examined all the relevant records of Pasari Spinning Mills Limited for the purpose of certifying compliance of the 

conditions of the Corporate Governance under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

for the period from 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024.  

Further, we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of certification. The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of 

the Management. Our examination was limited to the procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance.  

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations and information furnished to us, we certify that the Company has complied with all the 

mandatory conditions of Corporate Governance as applicable under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 except those which are indicated in Secretarial Audit Report  

 

 

 

 
 

 For Vinay & Ashwini 
Company Secretaries 

  
 

 
Date: 16th October, 2024 
Place: Bangalore  
UDIN:   F009159F001586922 

Vinay BL 
M No. F9159, CP No. 10760 

PR No: 1964/2022  
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Annexure-3 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH THE RELATED PARTIES  

(AOC-2) 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the  

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

 
1. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS. 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended 31st March, 2024 
which were not at arm's length basis. 
 

2. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARM LENGTH 
BASIS. 
There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 
March 31, 2024.  
 

For the disclosure purpose the details of contracts or arrangement or transactions for the year ended 31st March, 

2024 are as follows: 

Name(s) of 
the related 
party  

Nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ar
rangements/
transactions 

(d) 
Duration 
of the 
contracts/
arrangeme
nts/transa
ctions 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including the value, 
if any 

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any:  

Amount 
Outstanding, if 
any:  

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) 

M/s Pasari 
Exports 
Limited 

Common 
Directorship 

Unsecured 
Loan 

(Expenses 
paid on 
behalf of 
Pasari 

Spinning 
Mills ) 

NA 

Unsecured Loan 
(Expenses paid on 

behalf of Pasari 
Spinning Mills ) 

NA 
 

1 ,91,47,490 

Mrs. Kamala 
Devi Gupta 

Relative of 
Director 

Unsecured 
Loan 

NA Unsecured Loan NA 56,500 

Mr. T.K. 
Gupta 

CFO 
Unsecured 

Loan 
NA Unsecured Loan NA 1,10,280 

Mrs. Poonam 
Gupta 

Director 
Unsecured 

Loan 
NA Unsecured Loan NA - 

Mrs. Sneha 
Gupta 

Relative of 
Director 

Unsecured 
Loan 

NA Unsecured Loan NA - 

Mr. K.K 
Gupta 

Managing 
Director 

Unsecured 
Loan 

NA Unsecured Loan NA 5,01,980 
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Management discussion and Analysis 

1. Industry structure and developments: 

India's economy is projected to grow by 6.8% in 

2024, according to a report by the IMF which 

noted that multinationals extending their 

manufacturing processes into the country to 

diversify their supply chains will have a positive 

impact on Indian exports. The expansion in 2023 

was driven by strong public investment outlays 

as well as the vitality of the services sector which 

benefited from robust local demand for 

consumer services and firm external demand for 

the country's business services exports. These 

factors are expected to continue to support 

growth in India in 2024. 

 

Adverse economic conditions prevailed in major 

importing Countries, coupled with the Red Sea 

crisis are impacting the export of Indian textile 

products, including ready-made garments, to 

foreign destinations. However, with the US 

market showing signs of revival, experts believe 

exports to improve in the upcoming months. 

The domestic market, which accounts for 

around three-fourths of the overall demand, 

continues to witness a steady growth. Demand 

ahead of the spring-summer season in the West 

is likely to boost the off take of garments from 

India, thereby supporting the growth of the 

entire value chain. With better consumer 

demand big retailers in the overseas markets 

will have to restock inventory, improving order 

flow from Indian exporters. A favourable 

landscape marked by easing cost pressures and 

demand revival is likely to support the growth 

of Indian textiles in 2024. Addressing structural 

challenges and leveraging policy support are 

pivotal for the textile industry's sustained 

growth. 

        Indian Textiles Industry 

India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest 

industries in the Indian economy, dating back to 

several centuries. The industry is extremely 

varied, with hand-spun and hand-woven 

textiles sectors at one end of the spectrum, with 

the capital-intensive sophisticated mills sector at 

the other end. The fundamental strength of the 

textile industry in India is its strong production 

base of a wide range of fibre/yarns from natural 

fibres like cotton, jute, silk and wool, to 

synthetic/man-made fibres like polyester, 

viscose, nylon and acrylic. The decentralized 

power looms/ hosiery and knitting sector form 

the largest component of the textiles sector. The 

close linkage of textiles industry to agriculture 

(for raw materials such as cotton) and the 

ancient culture and traditions of the country in 

terms of textiles makes it unique in comparison 

to other industries in the country. India’s textiles 

industry has a capacity to produce a wide 

variety of products suitable for different market 

segments, both within India and across the 

world. 

2. Opportunities and threats: 

The promoters of your company are planning to 

enter into retail industries, currently the retail 

market is lucrative when compared with 

manufacturing industries and thereby have the 

hope of recovering from the present financial 

crisis.  

Opportunities 

India is one of the fastest-growing economies and 

this creates a boost in the purchasing power of the 

people while it also spurs the demand for 

products of the textile industry. This boost results 

in a wide range of capacity to manufacture 

different products that can be transported within 

India as well as across the world. Apart from this, 

India has one of the most extremely varied textile 

sectors as it has hand-woven textiles on one end 

while capital intensive mills on the other end 

which results in an enormous number of 

opportunities in the textile industry. 

Threats 

Though there are many opportunities and 

investments in the textile industry, like any other 

industry, the textile industry of India also 

undergoes certain challenges. The frequently 
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changing policies stated by the government at the 

central and state levels create immense pressure 

on the textile industry. Another challenge that the 

textile industry faces is the limitation to access the 

latest and best technology while also failing to 

meet the global standards in the competitive 

export market. Apart from these issues like 

competition from neighboring countries 

regarding low-cost garments is also the challenge 

the Indian textile industry faces. 

 

3. Segment wise performance and Company 

outlook: 

Due to: 

➢ Increase in cost of raw material 

➢ No substantial increase in the selling price of 

finished product (Cotton Yarn) 

➢ Regular absenteeism of the workmen 

➢ Frequent interruption in the power supply 

➢ Increase in the cost of electricity 

➢ Higher Indirect Taxes, Power and Interest Rates 

➢ Non favorable market conditions to the textile 

industry. 

➢ There is Declining in Mill Segment. 

Company was unable to run the factory, and the 

production was stopped from the end of July 2011, 

and the promoters, requested the Hon’ble Labour 

Department to grant the permission for closure of the 

factory. The Hon’ble labour department has granted 

the permission to close the factory located at 

Nanjangud vide its order No Ka.Ee 114 LMW 2007 

dated 29th November 2011. 

PASARI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED was undertaking 

manufacture of Cotton Yarn at its Unit located at 

KIADB Industrial Area, Nanjangud, Mysore District 

with spindle capacity of 17,472.  

4. Outlook: 

The promoters of your company are planning for 

entering into retail industries, currently the retail 

market is lucrative when compared with 

manufacturing industries and thereby have the 

hope of recovering from the present financial crisis 

5. Risk and Concerns:  

Risks: 

General Economic conditions: 

Presence in a highly competitive market and 

dependence on government & policy support 

and any slowdown in the global and/or Indian 

economy could adversely affect our business. 

Textile business in general is sensitive to 

fluctuations in the economy. Since Worldwide 

spread of Novel Corona Virus (Covid-19), 

disruption of supply chain and elimination of 

Quota system will lead to fluctuations in Export 

demand and Continuous Quality Improvement is 

need of the hour as there are different demand 

patterns all over the world, could lead to a 

downturn in the Textile Industry. 

Socio-political risks: 

In addition to economic risks, the Company faces 

risks from the socio-political environment, 

internationally as well as within the country and is 

affected by events like political instability, extreme 

weather conditions, Unfavourable labour Laws and 

natural calamities etc., 

Concerns: 

The Promoters of your Company, taken the 

permission for closure of the Factory from the 

Hon’ble labour department, Government of 

Karnataka, which stopped the further losses of 

the Company 

6. Internal control systems and their adequacy: 

Company has reviewed internal controls and its 

effectiveness through the internal audit process. 

Internal audits were undertaken for every 

operational unit and all major corporate functions 

under the direction of the Audit committee. 

The focus of these reviews are as follows: 
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➢ Identify weakness and areas of improvement 
➢ Safeguarding of tangible and intangible assets 
➢ Management of business and operational risks 
➢ Compliance with applicable statutes 
➢ Compliance with the Pasari “Code Of Conduct” 

The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the 
adequacy of the internal control environment 
through regular reviews of the audit findings and 
monitoring implementations of internal audit 
recommendations through the compliance 
reports submitted to them. 

7. Discussion on financial performance with 
respect to operational performance: 
The Company could not achieve the targeted 
results because of Closure of the factory.  
 

8. Material developments in Human Resources / 
Industrial Relations front, including number of 
people employed: 
Your Company had not employed workers and 
staff including the factory and head office. 

                           By order of the Board 

                         for Pasari Spinning Mills Limited 

                                     

, 
                  Date: 16th October, 2024         Krishna Kumar Gupta 
                  Place: Bangalore                                 Managing Director 

DIN: 00003880 
Add: A-21 Silver palm, Bldg 3, Basavanagar 

Main, Vibhuthipura Extn, Marathalli, 
Bangalore- 560067. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To, 
 
The Members of Pasari Spinning Mills Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pasari Spinning Mills Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes 
in Equity and Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and cash flows for the year ended on that date . 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
code of ethics. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion  
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. We don’t have any key audit matters to be addressed.  
.  
 
Emphasis of Matter Paragraph  
Emphasis of matter paragraphs are those matters that is of such importance that it is fundamental to users’ 

Emphasis of matter paragraphs are those matters that is of such importance that it is fundamental to users’ 

understanding of the financial statements or as appropriate any other matter that is relevant to users’ 

understanding of the audit, the auditor’s responsibilities or the auditor’s report. 

 

1. We draw attention to Note No. 24 – Other Disclosures of the Notes to the Financial Statements wherein the 
Company has provided for an amount of Rs. 63.90 Lakhs owing to non-progress of the legal dispute with the 
Cotton Corporation of India Limited. Further the balance litigated amount of Rs. 639.22 lakhs has been 
disclosed as Contingent Liability. 

 

2. Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Financial Statements of the Company must be signed 
by any two directors (one of whom shall be the Managing Director), the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief 
Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company, wherever they are appointed. 

 

3.  
 
 

https://taxguru.in/company-law/presidents-assent-companies-act-2013.html
https://taxguru.in/company-law/presidents-assent-companies-act-2013.html
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We were informed that the Chief Financial Officer of the Company is unable to sign due to his weak health conditions.  
 
Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matter. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report 
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to 

the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified 

under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate acc ounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair 

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

In preparing the Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 
 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by Management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 

in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our  opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.  

 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial 

statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope 

of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 

describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 

or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 

of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement 

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books; 

 

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, statement of 

changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 

account; 

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian accounting standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015; 

 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

https://taxguru.in/company-law/companies-act-2013-companies-accounts-rules-2014.html
https://taxguru.in/company-law/companies-act-2013-companies-accounts-rules-2014.html
https://taxguru.in/company-law/companies-act-2013-companies-accounts-rules-2014.html
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report 

expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 

financial controls over financial reporting; 

 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us; 

 

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 

financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting practice  

 

– Also refer Note 23 (iii) to the financial statements. 

 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses; and 

 

c. There is no requirement of transferring the amounts, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 

the Company. 

 

 

for Rao and Emmar 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 003084S 

 

 

B J Praveen 
Partner 
Membership No. 215713 
UDIN: 24215713BKAKCK5457 
Date: May 29, 2024 
Place: Bengaluru 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report to the 
members of Pasari Spinning Mills Limited of even date) 

 

1. In respect of the Company’s fixed assets: 
a. The Company has maintained proper 

records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets. 
 

b. The fixed assets of the Company were 
physically verified during the year by the 
Management in accordance with a regular 
programme of verification which, in our 
opinion, provides for physical verification of 
all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. 
According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

 

c. According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of records of the Company, 
the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the Company as at 
balance sheet date. 

 

d. The Company has not revalued its Property, 
Plant & Equipment (including right of- use 
assets) and intangible assets during the 
year 

 

e. As per the information & explanations 
provided to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated or are pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 

 
2. The Company does not carry any inventory, hence no 

physical verification has been carried out. 
 

3. In respect of loans, secured or unsecured granted by 
Company: 

 

a. As per the information and explanation 
given to us, the Company has not granted 
any loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 185 of the Act 
during the year. 

b. Since the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured, the 
reporting terms and condition for such 
loan, repayment of principal or interest 
and any overdue thereon is not 
applicable. 

 
4. In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, in respect of loans, 

investments, guarantees, and security, there are no 

terms and conditions attached to the loans taken by 

the Company from related parties. There is also no 

stipulation of schedule of repayment of interest and 

principal and these loans are interest free and 

repayable on demand. Hence, we are unable to 

comment on the Company’s compliance of 

Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
5. In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has not 

accepted any deposits and accordingly paragraph 

3 (v) of the order is not applicable. 

 
6. The Central Government of India has not 

prescribed the maintenance of Cost records under 

sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of 

the activities of the Company and accordingly 

paragraph 3 (vi) of the order is not applicable. 

 

7. In respect of statutory dues: 
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a.  According to the information and 

explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the 

Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in 

the books of account in respect of 

undisputed statutory dues including 

provident fund, employees’ state 

insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service 

tax, goods and service tax, duty of 

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 

cess and other material statutory dues 

have been generally regularly deposited 

during the year by the Company with the 

appropriate authorities. 

8. There were no transactions relating to previously 

unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 

of 1961) 

9. In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us in respect to the loans and 

borrowings from Banks and Financial Institutions 

by the Company, 

a. the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of principal of loan borrowed 

from Syndicate Bank (Now Canara 

Bank). There are no outstanding dues to 

any financial institutions or banks or any 

government or any debenture holders as 

at March 31, 2024. 

b. The Company has not been declared 

willful defaulter by any bank or financial 

institution or government or any 

government authority. 

c. To our best information, Loans borrowed 

by the bank were applied for the purpose 

it was obtained. 

d. On an overall examination of the financial 

statements of the Company, funds raised 

on short-term basis have, prima facie, not 

been used during the year for long-term 

purposes by the Company. 

e. On an overall examination of the financial 

statements of the Company, the 

Company has not taken any funds from 

any entity or person on account of or to 

meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 

associates or joint ventures 

f. The Company has not raised any loans 

on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures 

during the year and hence reporting on 

clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 

applicable 

 

10. The Company has not raised moneys by way of 

initial public offer or further public offer (including 

debt instruments) or term loans and hence 

reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

According to the information and explanations 

given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not 

made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xiv) of the order is not applicable. 

11. a) To the best of our knowledge and 

according to the information and 

explanations given to us, no fraud by the 

Company or no material fraud on the 

Company by its officers or employees has 

been noticed or reported during the year. 

 
b) No report under sub-section (12) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and up to the date of this 
report. 
c) To the best of our knowledge and 
according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has 
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not received any Whistler Blower 
complaints. 
 

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and 

accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is 

not applicable to the Company. 

13. According to the information and 

explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the 

Company, transactions with the related 

parties are in compliance with section 177 

and section 188 of the Act. Where 

applicable, the details of such transactions 

have been disclosed in the financial 

statements as required by the applicable 

accounting standards. 

14. According to the information & 

explanations provided to us, no internal 

auditor is appointed by the Company. 

15. According to the information and 

explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the 

Company, the Company has not entered 

into non-cash transactions with Directors 

or persons connected with them. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is 

not applicable. 

16. According to the information and 

explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the 

Company, the Company is not required to 

be registered under section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses 

during the financial year covered by our 

audit and the immediately preceding 

financial year. 

18. There has been no resignation of statutory 

auditors of the Company during the year. 

19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 

and expected dates of realization of 

financial assets and payment of financial 

liabilities, other information accompanying 

the financial statements and our 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and 

Management plans and based on our 

examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our 

attention, which causes us to believe that 

any material uncertainty exists as on the 

date of the audit report indicating that 

Company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of balance 

sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet 

date. We, however, state that this is not an 

assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the 

date of the audit report and we neither give 

any guarantee nor any assurance that all 

liabilities falling due within a period of one 
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year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when 

they fall due. 

20. As the Company is not liable for CSR 

provisioning, paragraph 3 (xx) of the order 

is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
for Rao and Emmar 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 003084S 
 
 

Praveen B J 
Partner  
Membership No. 215713  

UDIN: 24215713BKAKCK5457 

Date: May 29, 2024 
Place: Bengaluru  

 

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report to the 

Members of Pasari Spinning Mills Limited of even date) 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of sub – section 3 of section 

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pasari Spinning Mills Limited (“the Company”) as 

at March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 

Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 
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143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 

standards and the guidance note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 

testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement in the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system 

over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial 

reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial 

control over financial reporting includes those policies and 

procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of Management and 

Directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements. 

 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper Management of override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial control system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
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over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

for Rao and Emmar 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 003084S 

 

Praveen B J 

Partner  

Membership No. 215713  

UDIN: 24215713BKAKCK5457 

 

Date: May 29, 2024 

Place: Bengaluru 
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